U WN -

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

Town of Charlotte
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING
Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference
April 23, 2025

DRAFT — subject to approval by the Development Review Board

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis,
Brandon Tieso, Doug Paton.

Staff: Aaron Brown, Zoning Administrator.
OTHERS: Frank Tenney, Paul Plante, Claudia Mucklow, Liam O’Farrell, Nancy Menard, Dave

Carpenter, Mary Jo Sleeper, Heather Hamilton, Scott Baker, Brenda Waters, Chea Waters-Evans,
Martha Stone, Jim Donovan, Patrice Machavern, Sharon Mount, Ann Wittpin.

Posted Agenda:
7:00 PM Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)
7:02 PM Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)

7:05 PM DRB-25-034-SP/CU O’Farrell-Sleeper —Conditional use and site plan review for
proposed daycare facility serving 10 or more children at 435 Dorset Street

7:50 PM Request for Reconsideration: 24-138-VA Stone (Approved Variance at 88 Museum
Road)

8:00 PM DRB-25-043-SDA — Waters Evans and Donovan-O’Donnell — Subdivision amendment
to transfer 28 acres from 181 Windswept Lane to 501 Lake Road

8:30 PM Deliberate on closed hearings and draft decisions — DRB-25-034-SP/CU; DRB-25- 043-
SDA; DRB-24-138-VA

8:50 PM Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, April 9, 2025

9:00 PM Adjourn

CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Charles Russell called the meeting to order at 7:02pm.

CHANGES TO AGENDA:
Gerald Bouchard noted intent to deliberate on DRB-25-043-SDA before deliberating on DRB-
25-034-SP/CU.

Public Comment:
None.

DRB-25-034-SP/CU O’Farrell-Sleeper —Conditional use and site plan review for proposed daycare
facility serving 10 or more children at 435 Dorset Street:

Russell asked about any ex parte communications or conflicts of interest to be declared by the
Development Review Board; none noted. Russell reviewed what is required to establish interested party
status. Russell swore in Liam O’Farrell, Nancy Menard, Dave Carpenter, Mary Jo Sleeper, Heather
Hamilton, and Scott Baker.

Baker, of Barnard and Gervais, opened the presentation with an overview of the proposed
project. Sleeper and O’Farrell are seeking to convert an existing barn/garage at their residence into a
daycare facility. The residence is located in the Rural District. The applicant will construct a new mound
system for the daycare facility. The applicant intends to use the existing driveway for access to the



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

page 2 Development Review Board 04/23/2025

facility. Six parking spaces are proposed. The facility will hold no more than 17 people. The intended
hours of operation are for an 8am drop-off and 4pm pickup. Baker then opened the discussion for
questions.

Bouchard noted an overlap between the well and mound isolation zones. Baker responded that
isolation zones are permitted to overlap each other, but the drilled well must be located outside the septic
isolation zone. Bouchard then asked for clarification on the property line. Baker reviewed mapping with
Bouchard, and explained that water and wastewater are located and permitted on a first-come-first
served. Overshadowing is legal and common. Bouchard then asked if the existing driveway is wide
enough for two cars to pass. Baker said the driveway starts at 12 and is as narrow as 11’ in some spots.
Baker suggested the board defer to the Fire Chief regarding safety. Russell reviewed roadway standards
and noted the required driveway width is 14°. Baker said it’s an existing driveway and, as such, is more
difficult to build out to 14’ than would be the case if one were building the driveway new. Sleeper spoke
to a state public safety division inspector’s site visit and he found no driveway issues with the driveway.

Lewis asked for a breakdown of the 17 people that the facility can hold. Sleeper said 3 staff and a
maximum of 14 children. Sleeper then returned to driveway concerns and noted that families often have
sets of siblings enrolled in her care. This means fewer than 14 parents will be driving their kids to the
daycare on any given day. Additionally, parents drop off their kids at staggered times. Sleeper said she is
required to keep records of drop-off and pickup times and can provide that evidence if needed. Sleeper
said that her current facility in South Burlington does not have any issues with traffic and is located in a
more densely populated neighborhood. Lewis then asked where the neighboring driveway is located.
The board reviewed maps and found that no driveway is immediately across the street from the
applicants’ driveway. Lewis asked about an outdoor play area. Sleeper said it will be located behind the
barn and will be fenced in. Lewis then questioned sight lines. O’Farrell responded that looking south is
perfectly flat, looking north, it’s approximately 500’ before the hill starts to drop.

Brandon Tieso asked about lighting. O’Farrell said there are no proposed changes to the lighting.
Two sconces are on the exterior of the barn. As they pertain to lighting, hours of operation were
reviewed. Sleeper commented that staff arrive around 7:45am and leave around 4:10pm.

Russell opened the discussion for interested party comments. Nancy Menard said she lives across
the street, noted her objection to a commercial activity in a residential area. Menard is concerned about
traffic and the sight line to the north. Menard then said the driveway not being wide enough for two cars
to pass may cause backup in the road in the wintertime.

Carpenter expressed concern about potential noise and traffic.

In response, Baker said the placement of the facility on a main road is preferable, and from his
personal experience, traffic is not an issue on Dorset Street. Russell suggested a wider driveway at the
entrance to address traffic concerns. O’Farrell said there is a large turnaround available, and he doesn’t
see cars piling up in the road as a realistic problem, O’Farrell added that there are other commercial uses
on Dorset Street.

Rusell swore in Brenda Waters and Chea Waters-Evans. Waters-Evans asked for an explanation
of “shallow well” as depicted on the map of Waters’s land. Baker explained how the proposed mound
system complies with state regulations despite overshadowing. Waters-Evans requested the greatest
buffer possible. Baker confirmed that the mound will be moved 10 feet north of what the original plan
shows.

Sleeper spoke to Carpenter’s noise concerns. The children are outside for 30-60 minutes in the
morning and an additional 30 minutes in the afternoon before pickup.

Menard asked if expanding the capacity of the facility is possible. Sleeper said the facility is
based on wastewater capacity and therefore an expansion would require greater wastewater capacity and
a much greater expense. Furthermore, expanding to more children would also trigger numerous state
requirements because the well would become a public water supply. O’Farrell also addressed concerns
about overlapping water and wastewater zone and said the barn is adding only one toilet and one sink.



97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145

page 3 Development Review Board 04/23/2025

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to close DRB-25-034-SP/CU
O’Farrell-Sleeper. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

Request for Reconsideration: 24-138-VA Stone (Approved Variance at 88 Museum Road):

Russell asked about any ex parte communications or conflicts of interest to be declared by the
Development Review Board; none noted

Martha Stone explained that she is requesting reconsideration of the condition of approval that
requires her to remove the dilapidated cottage on her lot. She said the cost to remove the structure will
be $12,000-$15,000, and that estimate does not include grading and other site work. Stone would like
approval for the dilapidated home to continue to compost.

Tieso asked if the structure has a cellar as this could potentially be a safety hazard. Stone said it
does not. Russell read Stone’s Findings of Fact and Decision which indicates that the dilapidated
structure poses a potential risk to public safety. Stone offered to have the structure knocked down, it’s
the removal that will be costly.

Russell read from Land Use Regulations and listed potential reasons for reopening a hearing.
Consensus to do so.

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to reopen DRB-24-138-VA
Stone. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

DRB-25-043-SDA — Waters Evans and Donovan-O’Donnell — Subdivision amendment to transfer
28 acres from 181 Windswept Lane to 501 Lake Road:

Russell said that he is a neighbor and recused himself from the hearing, no other conflicts of
interest or ex parte communications noted. Bouchard swore in Chea Waters-Evans, Claudia Mucklow,
Jim Donovan, Patricia O’Donnell, Patrice Machavern, Sharon Mount, and Charles Russell.

Waters-Evans gave an overview of the proposed boundary line adjustment which is a transfer of
28 acres of her land to Donovan and O’Donnell. Donovan added he is interested in acquiring the land
for conservation purposes. Donovan said there are no plans beyond conservation. Lewis asked for
specific plans for conservation. Donovan noted his previous work with the Lake Champlain Land Trust,
his interest in protecting Holmes Creek, and the potential for transferable development rights for
affordable housing. There is no firm timeline for this potential project.

Bouchard took comments from interested party. Mucklow asked Donovan about his intentions to
develop his current parcel. Donovan said that he has no plans to build anything.

Russell pointed to a “line to be dissolved” on a map from a previous subdivision amendment and
noted the line was previously supposed to go away. Waters-Evans and Donovan confirmed that as
depicted, the line would be dissolved. The two lots Russell referred to, explained Waters-Evans, are
currently separate in deed but under common ownership.

Mount said she is an adjacent landowner asked why Donovan and O’Donnell are acquiring the
28 acres. Is their intention for the acreage to be a part of a future open space agreement? Donovan said
he has no plans. Bouchard asked how Mount’s question pertains to the boundary line adjustment.
Waters-Evans said it is a simple real estate transaction between neighbors.

Bouchard swore in Ann Wittpin as she requested to speak. Wittpin asked about current use and
what was meant by “clayplain forest.” O’Donnell clarified current use is a tax program for forestry,
agriculture, and conservation. The parcel contains remnants of a mesic clayplain forest, which the state
defines as a priority forest type. There is no plan to harvest timber at this site.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Doug Paton, to close DRB-25-043-SDA — Waters
Evans and Donovan-O’Donnell. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion carried. Russell was recused.

Deliberate on closed hearings and draft decisions:



146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184

page 4 Development Review Board 04/23/2025

DRB-25- 043-SDA:

The board reviewed a draft decision for Waters-Evans-Donovan and O’Donnell. Bouchard noted
that the decision needs to have updated figures for acreage. Paton noted final acreage is subject to
surveying. Aaron Brown proposed a statement to include in the decision to address acreage.

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Brandon Tieso, to approve the draft decision for
DRB-25-043-SDA — Waters Evans and Donovan-O’Donnell, as amended. VOTE: 4 ayes, motion
carried. Russell was recused.

DRB-25-034-SP/CU:

Russell noted that the driveway needs to be widened to the 14’ standard and suggested an 18’
widening at the beginning of the driveway to address traffic concerns. Consensus for the 18’ widening to
extend 30°. Lewis asked if the facility is considered commercial use, which would require a new
Highway Access Permit. Brown responded that daycare facilities exceeding 10 children are likely
considered a commercial use. Lewis suggested that the facility could also be considered Home
Occupation Level III. Brown replied that local Home Occupation standards do not match terms used in
the state daycare licensing program. Paton suggested driveway conditions be approved by the Charlotte
Fire Department to ensure fire safety.

Russell read from Land Use Regulations, noted the facility will not operate in a single-family
dwelling, but would be allowed in this circumstance given the barn fits in with the character of the area.

Russell asked if anything should be done to address the noise concern for the 90 minutes a day
that the children will be outdoors. The consensus was no, but the applicants’ stated intent to fence the
outdoor area should be noted.

Regarding well and septic isolation zones, the board said the decision should note that the
applicants intend to move the wastewater mound ten feet to the north.

Russell confirmed the allowed hours of operation as 7am-5pm.

Regarding lighting, finding of no new lighting, unless approved by the Zoning Administrator.

DRB-24-138-VA
No further discussion.

Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, April 9, 2025:
MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the DRB meeting
minutes for April 9, 2025, as drafted. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE: 5
ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 9:03pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted:
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary with edits by Aaron Brown




